[image: RWMA Header.]
[bookmark: 1_RWMA_Board_Meeting_Agenda_10-30-25]MEETING NOTICE & AGENDA

DATE:	October 30, 2025
TIME:	4:30 p.m.
PLACE:	City of Marysville Council Chambers 526 C Street, Marysville, CA 95901

I. [bookmark: I._Call_to_Order_&_Roll_Call]Call to Order & Roll Call
Bains, Buttacavoli (Vice-Chairman), House, Shaw (Chairman), Teter, and Woten

II. [bookmark: II._Public_Business_from_the_Floor]Public Business from the Floor
You are welcome and encouraged to participate in this meeting. Public comment is taken on action items appearing on the Consent Calendar, Reports, or Other Business Items on the Agenda when they are called. Public comment on any other items within the scope of the Authority’s jurisdiction, including items not
listed on the Agenda will be considered at this time. Public comment is limited to three minutes per speaker. Repetitive comments may be limited, and large groups are encouraged to select representatives to express the opinions of the group. No action may be taken on items that do not appear on the posted agenda.

III. [bookmark: III._Consent_Calendar]Consent Calendar
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and can be enacted in one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items prior to the time the Board votes on the motion unless members of the Board, staff, or public request specific items to be discussed or removed from the Consent Calendar for specific action.
A. [bookmark: A._Approval_of_minutes_from_September_18]Approval of minutes from September 18, 2025 (Attachment)
B. [bookmark: B._Disbursement_List_for_September_2025_]Disbursement List for September 2025 (Attachment)

IV. [bookmark: IV._Reports]Reports
A. [bookmark: A._Approval_of_Contract_Extension_With_R]Approval of Contract Extension With R3 Consulting Group, Inc. for Executive Director Staff Augmentation Services. (Attachment)
RECOMMENDATION:
· Authorize Board Chairman to execute a one-year agreement with R3 Consulting Group, Inc. in the amount of $240,000 for Executive Director staff augmentation services.
· Authorize additional on-call services on a time-and-materials basis, not to exceed $10,000 per month.

B. [bookmark: B._Bank_and_Investment_Accounts_Signatur]Bank and Investment Accounts Signature Authority Title Changes.
(Attachments)
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 6-25 changing the secondary signatory authority on the Regional Waste Management Authority’s bank and investment accounts.


V. [bookmark: V._Adjournment]Adjournment
THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR 4:30 P.M. ON THURSDAY, December 18, 2025 IN YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS.

[bookmark: 2_RWMA_SEPTEMBER_18_2025_Minutes]REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES
September 18, 2025

I. Call to Order & Roll Call
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Shaw on September 18, 2025 at 4:33 p.m.
Present: Bains, Buttacavoli (Vice-Chairman), House, Shaw (Chairman), Teter, and Woten
II. Public Business from the Floor
None.

III. Consent Calendar
Director Bains made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar with the correction as noted. Director Buttacavoli seconded the motion, and it was carried unanimously.

IV. Other Business
A. CPA Services Agreement. (Attachments) 
RECOMMENDATION: Authorize Executive Director to execute contract with Prentice Long, PC as proposed, or amended.

Director House made a motion to approve the execution contract with Prentice Long, PC. Director Woten seconded the motion, and it carried unanimously.

B. Recology Contract Amendment. 
Information Only.

Baxter informed the Board that she would soon be delivering a workshop-style presentation to review the Recology contract in detail. She stated that the presentation would cover the negotiated terms, including proposed revisions to clarify contract language and incorporate new regulatory requirements, such as route audits and implementation of a three-cart collection system.

Director House inquired about extraordinary rate adjustments and whether
it would be in the RWMA’s best interest to solicit multiple proposals. Director Shaw expressed concern regarding initiating a competitive procurement process for collection services, noting the potential impact on

the RWMA’s relationship with Recology.


V. Adjournment
The meeting of September 18, 2025 was adjourned at 4:42 p.m.

THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR 4:30 P.M. ON THURSDAY, October 16, 2025, IN YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS.

[bookmark: 3_ITEM_III.B_Disbursements_09_25]Agenda Item III. – B Disbursements List September 2025
Regional Waste Management Authority

	Check No.
	Amount
	Vendor
	Purpose

	1147
	$100.00
	Angela Teter
	Board Meeting 8/27/25

	1148
	VOID
	
	

	1149
	$100.00
	Bob Woten
	Board Meeting 8/27/25

	1150
	$100.00
	Bruce Buttacavoli
	Board Meeting 8/27/25

	1151
	$100.00
	David Shaw
	Board Meeting 8/27/25

	1152
	$100.00
	Karm Bains
	Board Meeting 8/27/25

	1153
	$130.00
	Rich, Fuidge, Bordsen & Galyean, Inc
	Attorney Services Invoice 4417

	1154
	$1,374.65
	Tower Media Studios
	Office Rent OCT 2025

	1155
	$550.00
	Alliant Networking Services, Inc.
	IT Services OCT 2025

	1156
	$29,479.09
	Yuba Sutter Food Bank
	Aug 2025 Grant Funded Staffing

	1157
	$5,802.58
	County of Sutter Human Resources
	RWMA Benefits OCT 2025

	1158
	$20,120.00
	R3 Consulting Group
	Services provided AUG 2025

	1159
	$285.00
	Streamline
	Web Services SEPT 2025

	1160
	$100.00
	Renick House
	Board Meeting 8/27/25

	EFT
	$21,519.83
	Gusto
	Payroll Salary AUG 2025

	EFT
	$116.00
	Gusto
	Payroll Service Fee SEPT 2025

	EFT
	$300.00
	Mission Square
	Employee Benefits SEPT 2025

	EFT
	$115.00
	QuickBooks Online
	Subscriptions SEPT 2025

	EFT
	$108.79
	Ring Central
	Subscriptions SEPT 2025

	EFT
	$141.68
	Employers
	Workers Comp SEPT 2025

	EFT
	$74.93
	Adobe
	Subscriptions SEPT 2025

	EFT
	$62.50
	Microsoft
	Subscriptions SEPT 2025

	EFT
	$61.44
	Carniceria Y Taqueria
	Team Meeting

	Total Disbursements

	$80,841.49

	LIAF TRANSFERS

	$0.00



[bookmark: 4_IV_-_A_Staff_Report]Agenda Item IV. – A Staff Report

APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT EXTENSION (FIRST AMENDMENT) WITH R3 CONSULTING GROUP, INC. FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR STAFF AUGMENTATION SERVICES
BACKGROUND
In June 2024, the Regional Waste Management Authority (RWMA) entered into an agreement with R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) to provide Executive Director staffing and support services. R3 has successfully established a local office with in-person operations, managed RWMA staff, negotiated franchise agreements, implemented SB 1383 compliance programs, prepared budgets, and represented RWMA to CalRecycle. The RWMA continues to face significant regulatory obligations, rate review deadlines, and administrative responsibilities that require consistent executive-level oversight.
DISCUSSION
RWMA’s solid waste staffing needs cover a range of tasks varying from staff management, accounting, contract administration, and compliance for member agencies exclusive solid waste franchise agreements. In June 2024, the RWMA Board engaged R3 Consulting Group to provide Executive Director staff augmentation services. Under this model, R3 has successfully established a consistent management presence, implemented operational systems, guided policy development, and enhanced RWMA’s ability to proactively manage regional solid waste responsibilities.

R3’s leadership has resulted in measurable progress toward RWMA’s strategic objectives. Key accomplishments to date include: establishing a local administrative office and internal processes, managing and mentoring RWMA staff, preparing and administering the FY 2025–26 budget, implementing organics procurement and food recovery compliance programs, and representing RWMA in state-level regulatory proceedings with CalRecycle. These accomplishments have not only ensured RWMA’s ongoing compliance but have also strengthened stakeholder confidence in the RWMA’s role as a regional leader.

Looking ahead, RWMA faces several high-priority initiatives that require continued executive-level oversight, including completion of the Integrated Waste Management Plan 5-Year Update, update of the RWMA regulatory surcharge analysis, support for CalRecycle compliance reviews, and a market-based evaluation of RWMA staffing compensation. Continuity of leadership is essential to maintain momentum, avoid disruption, and ensure that these strategic initiatives are completed on schedule.
The proposed one-year agreement extension with option to extend an additional one-year period with R3 provides the most efficient and cost-effective means of maintaining executive-level guidance during this critical period. R3 possesses institutional knowledge of RWMA’s programs, established working relationships with member agencies, the Board of Directors and CalRecycle, and specialized expertise in solid waste policy,

finance, contracting, and compliance. Continuing with R3 will ensure uninterrupted leadership while the Board of Directors evaluates long-term staffing strategies and completes key strategic initiatives.

Staff recommends approval of the agreement extension with R3 Consulting Group, to maintain organizational stability, ensure ongoing regulatory compliance, and position RWMA for long-term success.

FISCAL IMPACT
The $240,000 agreement will be funded by account 50309-1 and SB 1383 Local Assistance (OWR4) grant funds. Optional add-on services (capped at $10,000/month) will only be used if directed by the Board and funded through surcharge or grant funds, as applicable.

RECOMMENDATION:
· Authorize the Board Chairman to execute the First Amendment to the Original Agreement, a one-year agreement with an option to extend by one additional year with R3 Consulting Group, Inc. in the amount of $240,000 per year for Executive Director staff augmentation services.
· Authorize additional on-call services on a time-and-materials basis, not to exceed
$10,000 per month.
Attachment






[bookmark: 5_IV_-_A_2025.10_Amendment_R3_Consulting][bookmark: 20251024133626.pdf]FIRST AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES BETWEEN THE REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY AND R3 CONSULTING GROUP, INC.
This First Amendment ("First Amendment") is entered into between the Regional Waste Management Authority (the "Authority") and R3 Consulting Group, Inc. ("Consultant").
RECITALS
A. The Parties previously entered into that certain "Agreement for Consulting Services between the Regional Waste Management Authority and R3 Consulting Group, Inc." (the "Original Agreement") whereby Consultant provided certain services to the Authority since June of 2024.
B. Subject to the terms set forth in this First Amendment, the Parties desire that Consultant continue to provide services to the Authority for calendar years 2026 and 2027.
C. Consultant desires to perform those services and provide the deliverables to the Authority all consistent with its proposal dated October 13, 2025, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.
D. Consultant represents that it is qualified and willing to provide the services which are the subject of this First Amendment.

NOW THEREFORE it is agreed by and between the Authority and Consultant as follows:
Section 1 Incorporation of Recitals
The foregoing recitals are not merely recitals, but are contractual in nature and are incorporated into this Agreement.
Section 2 Services
Section 2 of the Original Agreement is amended such that, effective January 1, 2026, Consultant's services provided to the Authority shall be those as set forth on Exhibit A, attached hereto.
Section 3 Compensation
Section 3 of the Original Agreement is amended to provide that the compensation to be paid by the Authority to Consultant for the scope of work identified as Tasks 1, 2, 3 and 4 shall be fixed at $20,000 per month. In addition to the foregoing, Consultant is available and shall provide on-call support services (limited to $10,000 per month on a per hour basis), with such services being described and delineated as Task 5 as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. The

1






hourly rates for these add-on services are set forth in the project budget contained within Exhibit A.
Section 4 Term of Agreement
This First Amendment shall be effective January 1, 2026, and shall continue and remain in effect until December 31, 2027 unless terminated earlier pursuant to the provisions of Section 5 of the Original Agreement.
Section 5
Provisions of Original Agreement Remain in Effect
Except as modified by this First Amendment, all the terms and provisions of the Original Agreement remain in full force and effect. A copy of the Original Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit B for reference.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date set forth
below.



Dated: ---------






Dated: ---------

R3 CONSULTING GROUP, INC.



BY: Carrie Baxter Its: Principal

REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT



BY: David Shaw
Its: Board Chairman











2














































EXHIBIT A




a')	�	CONSULTING GROUP, INC.
K	1 RESOURCES. RESPECT· RESPONSIBILITY


October 13, 2025
Mr. Brant Bordsen, Legal Counsel
Yuba Sutter Regional Waste Management Authority 1129 D Street, Marysville, CA 95901	• submitted via email: bbordsen@yubasutterlaw.com

SUBJECT:	Executive Director Staff Augmentation CY 2026-27 - R3 Proposal

Dear Mr. Bordsen,

R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) is pleased to submit the attached proposal to Yuba Sutter Regional Waste Management Authority (RWMA) to continue supporting the regional agency by filling the Executive Director role for Calendar Year (CY) 2026-27.

Introduction
Dur team has supported RWMA with a wide range of services since June 2024, such as:
))	Setting up a local office.
))	Managing RWMA staff, including developing and implementing processes and procedures.
))	Actively recruiting, interviewing, and providing expertise for the Executive Director recruitment.
))	Implementing programs and policies to address SB 1383 compliance gaps:
· Memorandum of understanding with the Yuba Sutter Food Bank.
· Contract with Zero FoodPrint to procure recovered organic waste product
))	Negotiating regulatory compliant solid waste franchise agreement extensions.
))	Reviewing solid waste rate adjustments.
))	Stakeholder engagement and regularly presenting to the Board and member agency councils.
))	Representing the regional agency and reporting to CalRecycle, including grant administration.
))	Preparing the FY 2025-26 RWMA budget and analyzing the RWMA Surcharge.

As such, R3 is uniquely qualified to continue supporting the RWMA in the Executive Director role. We will provide expert knowledge and technical assistance to aid in administration, program development and success in all areas of RWMA's solid waste management program.

Project Team
Carrie Baxter, Principal, has served as RWMA's Executive Director since June 2024 and will continue to serve as the Project Lead for this engagement. She will be supported by Scott Hanin, Principal, Claire Wilson, Jordan Lane, and Alex Soulard, Managing Consultants. Our team has the ability to draw upon additional day-to-day staff on an as-needed basis.
*	*
We appreciate the opportunity to submit our proposal to RWMA. Should you have any questions regarding our proposal or need any additional information, please don't hesitate to reach out directly.

Sincerely,
CA/\;\_.:.,l Oeul�
Carrie Baxter I Principal
R3 Consulting Group, Inc.
916.878.7413 I cbaxter@r3cgi.com

1504 Eureka Road, Suite 220, Roseville, CA 95661  I  p 916.782.7821  I  f 916.782.7824  I  www.r3cgi.com

1. SCOPE OF WORK

Project Understanding
RWMA's solid waste staffing needs cover a range of tasks varying from staff management, accounting, contract administration, and compliance for member agencies exclusive solid waste franchise agreements. As such, R3 will provide expert knowledge and technical assistance to aid in program development and success in all areas of RWMA's solid waste management program.	•

R3's goal for this engagement is to provide a turn-key solution to RWMA's solid waste management program, in collaboration with the Board, its six member agencies, and RWMA staff. We will verify that the member agencies' franchised hauler (Recology) operates safely and effectively, that they comply with their contractual obligations, and that the member agencies comply with all relevant laws and regulations. As RWMA's consultant, R3 will determine if the franchised hauler is contractually compliant through monthly and quarterly contract assessments and recommend any necessary corrective actions. R3 will also assist in maintaining the RWMA and its member agencies' compliance with the state by preparing required reports, communicating with CalRecycle, training RWMA staff on processes and procedures, and performing all obligations as set by the governing entities.

In the next year, the RWMA 's goals will include:
}) Complete a bi-annual financial audit (FY 2023-24 and 2024-25).
}) Evaluate staffing needs including RWMA's staffing positions and salaries to ensure alignment with market benchmarks from comparable agencies.
})  Assess RWMA's annual budget and RWMA Surcharge.
})  Negotiate key terms for compliance with SB 1383 with collection contracts.
})  Complete the Integrated Waste Management Plan 5-Year Report Update.
})  Continue to monitor SB 1383 implementation compliance.

Scope of Work
Task 1	Executive Director Administrative Duties
R3 will have a dedicated staff person in Yuba or Sutter County working directly with RWMA staff and Board Members, on a weekly basis. Generally, in-person office hours will be held on Tuesday's between 10:00am - 3:00pm with the exception of RWMA Board meetings, which are scheduled on Thursday afternoons. Our proposal estimates on average 5 hours of in-person staff time per week. These estimated weekly hours are presented with the understanding that some weeks will require less time and others will require more.

R3's dedicated staff person wilt also fill the administrative duties of the executive director as requested by the Board. These duties include, but are not limited to, maintain the annual budget, accounts payable distributions, approving time off, managing staff and financial reviews, coordinating with payroll, annual budget preparation.

Task 1 Deliverables
Weekly meetings with RWMA staff.
Management of the RWMA staff (approving time off, coordination with payroll, etc.). Accounting (AP/AR) and human resource oversight.
Annual budget preparation.

Task 2	On-Going Coordination with Key Stakeholders
R3 will work with RWMA staff to prepare Board meeting agenda packets and participate in RWMA Board meetings, as well as Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) meetings with City Managers and County Administrators, each scheduled monthly (typically 8-9 meetings per year). We have budgeted for Board


RWMA I Executive Director Staff Augmentation	1 Q3











meetings to be in person; however, TAC meetings have been budgeted to be virtual. R3 will also attend state and regional meetings, on behalf of RWMA, to monitor solid waste issues.

R3 will track legislation and anticipated State of California regulations that will impact the RWMA's recycling and waste reduction program. R3 will assume responsibility for all ongoing communication with the RWMA's CalRecycle Local Assistance and Market Development Branch (LAMD) representatives, and Jurisdiction and Agency Compliance and Enforcement Branch (JACE) representatives. We will report to TAC and the Board on all pertinent issues and will bring follow-up actions from the regional and state agency coordination meetings.

R3 will also be available to present to member agency councils or boards on solid waste related matters, including, but not limited to, current and upcoming regulations, or franchise agreement amendments.

Task 2 Deliverables
Up to twenty-five (25) meetings annually, comprised of:
· Nine (9) RWMA Board meetings.
· Nine (9) TAC meetings.
· Seven (7) other meetings with Board Members and other stakeholders such as CalRecycle and/or presentations to member agency councils or boards.


Task 3
Task 3.1

Solid Waste Program Management
Waste Hauler Agreement Administration

R3 will act as RWMA staff and assume responsibility for the tracking and on-time submittal of all reports and required deliverables, per the member agencies' solid waste collection agreements. Our team will assist in monitoring Recology's residential and commercial programs and contractual obligations and will work with RWMA staff to provide residential and commercial customers with guidance on disposal, recycling, and proper solid waste management. We will schedule monthly meetings with Recology and prepare agenda items to review contract compliance components, tonnage and diversion reports, and any current and upcoming solid waste activities.

Task 3.2	Report Preparation
R3 will assist RWMA staff in compiling and maintaining records pertaining the Electronic Annual Report (EAR) and the Household Hazardous Waste (Form 303). We will assist in completing and filing all reports required by CalRecycle to support the RWMA's member agencies' compliance with the state's diversion goals. R3 will prepare the EAR to describe the activities undertaken through the programs adopted in the RWMA's Source Reduction and Recycling Element and Household Hazardous Waste Element.

Task 3.3	General Program, Board and Staff Support
Ongoing coordination will be conducted regularly throughout the project with the RWMA staff, either through virtual meetings or status reports. We have budgeted for most meetings, including check-in meetings with RWMA staff, Board Members and Recology to be virtual. R3 will provide as-needed solid waste consulting services, as requested. While the nature of on-call services makes it difficult to determine which services R3 may be asked to perform, we have prepared a list that we envision we may be asked to provide (see list below).

On-call support services may include:
})		Providing technical assistance and guidance to RWMA staff on issues related to solid waste, recycling, and organics.
})	Providing guidance on compliance with State regulations, including, but not limited to SB 1383, SB 1016, AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826, AB 1594, AB 1669, AB 901, and AB 876.



RWMA I Executive Director Staff Augmentation	2	Q.3








)}		Monitoring and advising RWMA staff on State regulations including any policy issues or areas of concern.
))	Site visits to provide additional education to non-compliant businesses.
))	Rate reviews.
))	Review of options for maintaining recordkeeping and reporting to meet regulatory requirements.

Task 3 Deliverables
Contract compliance report monitoring.
Workbook tracking compliance with the requirements set forth in the member agencies' franchise agreements with Recology.
Gather and maintain records in preparation of completing the annual reporting for CalRecycle. Review data and submit annual HHW Form 303 report to CalRecycle.
On-call support services, as requested.

Task4	Prepare, Monitor, and Manage Grants
R3 will assist RWMA staff manage and administer current grant programs and submitting reports to the applicable grant agencies. R3 will stay up to date on all current and upcoming grant cycles, maintain knowledge of all new and existing grants, and provide necessary recommendations.

Task 4 Deliverables
Grant management tracking workbook
Regular RWMA staff check-ins to draft and apply for grants, administer grants that have been awarded, and report on completed grant programs.

Task 5	On-Call Support Services
Our team is also available to provide additional solid waste related services on an hourly basis for items not included in Tasks 1 through 4, as directed by the RWMA Board. These specific tasks to be performed and the amount of time to be allocated to each task will be limited to $10,000 in add-on assistance per month. RWMA Board-directed support services will be limited to including the following subtasks at the time of this proposal.

Task 5.1	Staffing Positions and Salaries Market Analysis (December 2025)
R3 will conduct surveys or interviews as needed for similar public sector agencies, regional peers, and solid waste management authorities to gather current staffing position and compensation information and will then perform a comprehensive analysis of the data. This information will be provided in a report and presented during the TAC and RWMA Board meetings in late 2025. In the event that a staff position becomes vacant or is added, R3 will advertise and conduct the recruitment process.

Task 5.2	JACE Compliance Review Support (December 2025 - March 2026)
The RWMA is expected to receive findings from the JACE compliance reviews for Sutter County, Yuba County, Live Oak, Marysville, Yuba City in the coming months. R3 will support RWMA staff in responding to areas of non-compliance including reviewing the Compliance Review Report, meeting with CalRecycle staff, preparing documentation, and updating current policies to align with the regulatory requirements.

Task 5.3	Integrated Waste Management Plan 5-Year Report (December 2025 - April 2026)
Every five years, the RWMA is required to provide a report to CalRecycle updating any changes to its Integrated Waste Management Plan (IWMP). R3 will support RWMA staff by reviewing the draft report, coordinating Local Task Force (LTF) meetings, presenting the report to the RWMA Board and submitting the final IWMP report to CalRecycle by April 2026.


RWMA I Executive Director Staff Augmentation	3	Q3







Task 5.4    Negotiations with Recology (December 2025 - November 2026)
R3 will continue to support the RWMA by finalizing the key terms of the six member agencies' franchise agreements as well as considerations of term extensions to align the HHW facility lease and operations agreements.

Following a study session with the RWMA board, R3 will present a draft amendment of all six jurisdictions for consideration. After approval from the RWMA board, R3 will then present the individual amendment to each of the six member agencies' City Council and/or Board of Directors for consideration.

Task 5.5    RWMA Surcharge Analysis (December 2025 - May 2026)
R3 will update the prior RWMA Regulatory Surcharge Analysis (June 2025) to reflect the most recent fiscal year financial data, base rate revenue information, and RWMA budget projections for FY 2026-27 and beyond. This update will include reviewing and verifying the data, assumptions, and methodologies used in the prior analysis to ensure continued compliance with cost-of-service, proportionality, and legal defensibility requirements under Propositions 218 and 26.
Building upon the prior analysis, R3 will conduct additional evaluation of the surcharge structure options available to the RWMA, specifically focusing on whether the surcharge should continue to be assessed as:
))		A fixed monthly amount by customer type (e.g., per-account surcharge by residential, commercial, and debris box classifications); or
))		A percentage of gross revenues (e.g., percentage of Recology's base rate revenues by member agency and service classification).
The analysis will quantify and compare the revenue generation, administrative feasibility, proportionality, and customer impacts associated with each approach. Specific subtasks will include:
))	Updating surcharge modeling using current Recology rate and subscriber data.
))	Evaluating projected RWMA program costs and revenue requirements.
))		Comparing revenue and ratepayer impacts under both fixed-fee and percentage-based approaches.
))	Identifying administrative and billing considerations for both RWMA and Recology.
))		Developing recommendations for a preferred surcharge methodology and implementation process.
At the conclusion of this task, R3 will prepare and present an updated surcharge analysis memorandum that summarizes findings, methodology, and recommendations, including supporting data tables and surcharge model outputs.

Task 5 Deliverables
Customized compensation survey with draft and final report incorporating regional cost-of-living considerations and industry trends into analysis and comparing RWMA's titles and total compensation to market benchmarks (Task 5.1)
Presentation of results to RWMA staff and RWMA Board of Directors (Task 5.1)
Review and respond within 10-day window to JACE compliance evaluation report for five (5) jurisdictions (Task 5.2)
As necessary, develop compliance strategy to address Notice of Violation received as a result of the JACE compliance evaluation (Task 5.2)
Draft and Final Regional IWMP, and presentation to RWMA staff, LTF, and RWMA Board of Directors
(Task 5.3)
Evaluation of cost proposals and draft amendment language (Task 5.4)
Presentation of proposed terms to TAC (Task 5.4)


RWMA I Executive Director Staff Augmentation	4	R.3











Study session with Board of Directors (Task 5.4)
Presentation at six (6) member agency City Council and Board of Supervisors meetings for final approval (Task 5.4)
Updated surcharge model and supporting spreadsheet. (Task 5.5)
Comparative analysis of fixed fee versus percentage-based surcharge structures. (Task 5.5)
Draft and final RWMA Surcharge Update Memorandum summarizing analysis and recommendations.
(Task 5.5)
Presentation of results to RWMA staff and the RWMA Board of Directors. (Task 5.5)

















































RWMA I Executive Director Staff Augmentation	5	R..3



2. PROJECT BUDGET

R3 proposes to complete the project for a total cost of $240,000 for a 12-month term. For cost effective service delivery, R3's proposal to support the RWMA with Tasks 1 through 4 is fixed at $20,000 per month. This budget includes R3 staff time of approximately 16-20 hours per week, including dedicated in-person staff time of on average 5 hours in Yuba or Sutter County working directly with Board Members, TAC, and RWMA staff on a weekly basis. These estimated weekly hours are presented with the understanding that some weeks will require less time and others will require more. The budget is inclusive of reimbursable costs for travel at the 2025 IRS mileage rate of $0.70 per mile.

As mentioned in Task 5, our team is also available to provide additional solid waste related services on an hourly basis for items not included in Tasks 1 through 4, as directed by the RWMA Board. The specific tasks to be performed and the amount of time to be allocated to each task will be limited to $10,000 in add-on assistance per month.

R3 further agrees to extend the duration of this fixed fee proposal for up to an additional 12 months upon request from the Board. In the event the RWMA Executive Director augmentation needs are reduced, R3 will present the RWMA Board with a revised proposal adjusting the hours and fixed fee during this second 12-month term.

Additional consulting services beyond those proposed will be charged at the hourly billing rates shown in Table 1, below. Our fixed fee for work completed will be billed monthly at the first of each month, for the preceding month, and are due within 30 days of the invoice date.
Table 1: Standard Rates, Fiscal Years 2025-26 & 2026-27·
·-	-	--	- --	--	--	-	-r	--	-	-----•,---	- -
1:   -��l���T•�-�fY�5�! 	L��	

Principal / Sr. Director Director
Sr. Managing Consultant Managing Consultant Sr. Consultant Consultant
Associate Consultant

$ 340 per hour
$ 305 per hour
$ 265 per hour
$ 240 per hour
$ 220 per hour
$ 200 per hour
$ 185 per hour

$ 360 per hour
$ 320 per hour
$ 280 per hour
$ 255 per hour
$ 230 per hour
$ 210 per hour
$ 195 per hour

-	-	Expert Witness-	---	-


1.5x Rates Listed Above


	;
	
	REIMBURSABLE COSTS
	

	!  - 
	--  ----=-----	 -
	--  - _-	
	-   --- 

	Consultants/Subcontractors
	Cost plus 10%

	Lodging and meals
	Direct cost

	Travel - Private or company car
	At Current Federal Rate

	Travel - Other
	Direct cost

	Delivery and other expenses
	Direct cost










RWMA I Executive Director Staff Augmentation	6	Q3














































EXHTBITB

[bookmark: 5-30-24_R3_CONSULTING_AGREEMENT_KB_signe]AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES BETWEEN THE REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY AND R3 CONSUL TING GROUP, INC.

This agreement (''Agreement") is entered itltl) effective \:v·hen signed by the parties hereto and is between the Regional Waste Managenient Authority (the "Authorit/') and R3 Consulting Group. Inc. ("Consultant").

RECITALS

1. The Authority is a joint powers authority comprised of the counties of Sutter and Yuba and the cities of Live Oak, Marysville. Wheatland and Yuba City. The Authority is responsible for coordinating solid waste program planning and reporting for its member jurisdictions.

2. The Authority desires the professional services of Consultant to provide executive director staff augmentation services consistent with Consultant's proposal attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein as if set forth in full.

3. Consultant desires to perform the services and provide the deliverables to the Authority -all as consistent with its proposal (Exhibit A).

4. Consultant represents it is qualified and willing to provide the services which are the subject of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT JS AGREED by and between the Authority and Consultant as follO\vs:

SECTION l INCORPORATION OF RECITALS

The foregoing recitals are not merely recitals but are contractual in nature and are incorporated into this Agreement.

SECTION 2 SCOPE OF SERVICES

(a) Services to be Furnished. Subject to such policy direction and approvals as the Authority through its staff may determine from time to time. Consultant shall perform the services as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.

{b)  Standard of Oualitv. All work performed by Consultant under this Agreement shall be in accordance with all applicable legal requirements and shall meet the standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of competent professionals in Consultant's field of expertise.

(c)  Compliance with Laws. Corisultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state. and local laws, codes, ordinances, regulations. orders. and decrees. Consultant represents and

warrants to the Authority that Consultant shall. at its own qist and expense. keep in eftl:'ct or obtain at all times during the term of this Agreement any licenses. permits. insurance and approYa)s which are legally required for Consultant to practice its profession or are necessary and incident to the due and lawful prosecution of the sen·ices it performs under this Agreement. Consultant shall at all times during the term of this Agreement. and for one year thereafter, provide written proof of such licenses. permits, insurance, and approvals upon request by the Authority. The Authority is not responsible or liable for Consultant's failure to comply with any or all of the requirernents contained in this paragraph.

SECTION 3 COMPENSATION

The compensation to be paid by the Authority to Consultant is fixed at $18,500.00 per month. Consistent with Consultant's project budget, this includes Consultant's staff time of approximately 16 hours per week.. including dedicated in-person staff time on an average of 5 hours in Yuha or Sutter County working directly with Board memhers. TAC and RWf\1A staff on a \\"eekly hasis. Additional consulting services beyond those proposed shall he charged at the hourly hilling rates sho\\11 in Table I (page 4 of Exhibit A).

SECTION 4 TERM OF AGREEl'v1ENT

This Agreement shall be effective when signed by the parties and shall remain in effect until November 30, 2024. Consultant further agrees to extend the duration of this Agreement under the same terms and conditions for up to an additional 12 months upon written request from the Authority. The Authority may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience at which time Consultant shall cease further work and shall he entitled to compensation on an equitable basis should such termination occur other than at the end of a calendar month.

SECTION 5
TER!\-11NATION

(a) Authority shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for any reason. at its convenience upon written notice of termination to Consultant. The notice shall be deemed scn·cd and effective for all purposes on the date it is deposited in the U.S. mail. certifo:d. return receipt requested. addressed to Consultant at the address specified in this Agreement.

(b) If Authority issues a notice of termination:

{i)	Consultant vv·ill immediately cease rendering services.

(ii) Consultant shall deliver to Authority copies of all writings. whether or not completed. which were prepared by Consultant. its employees. or its subcontractors, ifany. pursuant to this Agreement. The term --writings·· shall include. but not be limited to. hand\'\riting. type\1.:riting. computer files and records. drawings. blueprints. printing. photostatting. photographs. and e\·ery other means of recording upon any tangible thing. any form of communication or representation.

2

including letters, words, pictures. sounds, symbols, or combinations thereof;

(iii) Authority shall pay Consultant fbr \Vork actually perfonned up to the effective date of the Notice of Termination, less any compensation tci the Authority for damages suffered as a result of Consultant's failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement. However, if this Agreement is terminated because the work of Consultant does not 111eet the terms or standards specified in this Agreement, then the Authority shall be obligated to compensate Consultant only for that portion of Consultant's services which are of benefit to the Authority.

(c) If not terminated as a result of events described above, this Agreement shall be terminated by Consultant's performance in satisfaction of the terms of this Agreement.

SECTJ0N6 AMENDMENTS

Modifications or amendments to the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and executed by both parties.

SECTJ0N 7
NONDISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Consultant shall not, either during or after the term of this Agreement, disclose to any third party any confidential information relative to the work of Authority without the prior writte11 consent of Authority.

SECTION 8 INSPECTION

Authority representatives shall, with reasonable notice. have access to the work and work records of Consultant, including time records. for purposes of inspecting same and determining that the work is being perfonned in accordance \:1,·ith the terms of this Agreement.

SECTION 9 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

In the performance of the services in this Agreement Consultant is an independent contractor and is not an agent or employee of Authority. Consultant. its oflicers. employees. agents. and subcontractors. if any, shall have no power to bind or commit Authority to any decision or course of action, and shall not represent tc:i any person or business that they have such power. Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full .control of the supervision of the services and over the employment, direction, compensation, and discharge of all persons assisting Consultant in the performance of said service hereunder. Consultant shall be solely responsible for all matters relating to the payment of its employees. including compliance with social security and income tax withholding, workers' compensation insurance, and all other regulations governing such matters.



3

SECTION 10 NOTICE

Any notices or other communications to he given to either party under this Agreement shaJI be in writing, shall be delivered to the addresses set forth below, and shall be effective, as follows:

(a) by personal delivery, effective upon receipt by addressee;

(b) by facsimile, effective upon receipt by the addressee, so long as a copy is provided by certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, postmarked the same day as the facsimile:

(c) bycertified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, effective 72 hours after deposit
in the mail.


AUTHORITY






And to







CONSULTANT

REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
2 I 00 B Street
Marysville, CA 95901
Phone: (530) 634-6890
Fax: (530) 634-6888

RICH, FUIDGE, BORDSEN & GALYEAN, INC.
Attn: Brant .l. Bordsen 1129 D Street
Marysville, CA 95901
Phone: (530) 742-7371 Fax:(530)742-5982

R3 CONSULTING GROUP INC.
Attn: Carrie Baxter
15 I 2 Eureka Road, Suite 200
Roseville, CA 95661
Phone: (916) 782-7821
Fax: (916) 782-7824


Either party may change its address for notices by complying with the notice procedures in this Section.

SECTJON 11 O\VNERSHIP OF MATERIALS

The Authority is the owner of all records and infi.)rmation created, produced, or generated as part of the services performed under this Agreement. At any time during the term of this Agreement, at the request of the Authority, Consultant shall deliver to the Authority all writings, records, and information created or maintained pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall continue to provide

4

the Authority with access to writings which are the subject of this Agreement beyond the term of this Agreement, for a period of three (3) years following completion of the project.
SECTION 12
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING
(a) Asshmment. Consultant shall not assign, delegate. or transfer its duties, responsibilities, or interests in this Agreement without the prior express written consent of the Authority. Any assignment without such approval shall be void and, at the Authority's option, shall terminate this Agreement and any license or privilege granted herein.

{b)  Subcontracting. Consultant shall not subcontract or otherwise assign any portion of the work to be performed Under this Agreement without the prior express Written consent of the Authority. If the Authority consents to Consultant's hiring of subcontractors, all subcontractors are deemed to be employees of Consultant and Consultant agrees to be responsible for their performance. Consultant shall give its personal attention to the fulfillment of the provisions of this Agreement by all of its employt'!es and subcontractors, if any, and shall keep the work. under its controL

SECTION 13 BINDING AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall bind the successors of the Authority and Consultant in the same manner as if they ·were expressly named herein. provided however, that nothing in this section authorizes Consultant to assign or subcontract any portion of the Work performed under this Agreement without the Authority's advance written consent.

SECTION 13
WAIVER

(a) Effect of Waiver. Waiver by either party of any default1 breach, or condition precedent shall not be construed as a waiver of any other default, breach, or condition precedent or any other right under this Agreement.
(b) No Implied Waivers. The failure of either party at any time to require performance by the other party of any provision hereof shall not affect in any way the right to require such performance at a later time;

SECTION 14 INDEMNITY
To the fullest extent allowed by law, Consultant specifically agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Authority, its officers, agents. and employees from and against any and all actions, claims, demands, losses, expenses including attorneys' fees, damages, and liabilities resulting from injury or death of a person or injury to property, arising out of or in any way connected with the

5

performance of this Agreement, however caused regardless of any negligence of the Authority. whether active or passive. excepting only such injury or death as may he caused hy the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Authority. The Consultant shall pay all costs that may he incurred by the Authority in enforcing this indemnity, including reasonable attorneys' fees. The defense and indemnification obligations of this Agreement are undertaken in addition to. and shall in no ,vay be limited by. the insurance ohligations contained in this Agreement.

SECTION 15 INSURANCE

(a}  Required Coverage. Consultant. at its sole cost and expense. shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect throughout the entire term of this Agreement the following described insurance coverage. This coverage shall insure not only Consultant. but also. v\'ith the exception of workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance. shall name as additional insureds the Authority, its member jurisdictions and their respective officers. agents. employees and nllunteers. and each of them.

(b) Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

l.	Insurance Services Otlice Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 000 I).

2. Automobile Liability: $2.000.000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workers· Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer's Liability Insurance {for consultants with employees).

(c) Minimum Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability: $2.000.000 per occurrence for bodily injury. personal injury and property damage, if applicable. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.


2. 
property damage.

Automobile Liability: $2,000.000 per occurrence for bodily injury and


3. Employer's Liability: $2,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

(d) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Authority. At the option of the Authority. either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the Authority. its officers, ofricials. employees and volunteers: or the Consultant shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the Authority guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations. claim administration and defense expenses.

6

(e) Other Insurance Provision. The general liability and the automobile liability policy are to contain, or be endorsed to contain the i<)llowing provisions:

I.   The Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Authority, its officers, officials. employees and voluilteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Authority, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

2.  Each insurance policy required by this clause shall not be canceled. except after ten or more days from the Authority's receipt ofsuch notice of cancellation.

(f) Acceptability ofinsurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vl. Exception may be made for the State Compensation Insurance Fund when not specifically rated.

(g) Verification of Coveral!e. Consultant shall furnish the Authority ,vith original amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause. The endorsements should be on forms provided by the Authority or on other than the Authority's forms, provided those endorsements or policies confonn to the requirernents. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the Authority before ,,·ork under this Agreement commences. The Authority reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all requited insurance policies. including endorsements effecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time.
The additional insured coverage wiH not seek contribution from the Authority's insurance or self insurance and shall be at least as broad as CG 20 JO 04 13.

Additional endorsements may be needed to provide the other.required provisions.

It shall be a requirement under this Agreernent that any available insurance proceeds broader than or in excess of theamounts specified minimum insurance coverage tequirements and/or limits shall be available to the additional insured. Furthermore, requirements for coverage and limits shall be (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage ifany insurance policy or proceeds available to the named insured; whichever is greater.

SECTION 16 WORKERS' COMPENSATION

(a) Covenant to Provide. Consultant warrants that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance ,vith the provisions of that code. Consultant further agrees that it \.viii comply ,,·ith such provisions before commencing the performance of the work under this Agreement.

(b) Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant and Consultant's insurance company agree to waive all rights {if subrogation against the Authority, its elected or appointed otlkials,

7

agents. and employees for losses paid under Consultant"s workers· compensation insurance policy which arise from the work performed by Consultant for the Authority.

SECTION 17 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Consultant shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to prevent any actions or conditions which could result in a conflict with the Authority's interest. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall not accept any employment or engage in any consulting \York vvhich creates a conflict of interest with the Authority or in any way compromises the services to be performed under this Agreement. Consultant shall immediately noti6· the Authority of any and all ,·iolations of this Section upon becoming aware of such violation.

SECTION 18 TIME OF THE ESSENCE

Consultant understands and agrees that time is of the essence in the completion of the work and services described in Section 2 of this Agreement. The Authority acknowledges that this time is of the essence clause does not apply to cases where unreasonable project delays are caused on the part of the Authority.

SECTION 19 SEVERABILITY

If any court of competent jurisdiction or subsequent preemptive legislation holds or renders any of the provisions of this Agreement unenforceable or invalid, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions. or pm1ions thereof, shall not be affected.

SECTION 20
GOVERNING LA v-.· AND CHOICE OF FORUM

This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under Califr)rnia law as if v,Titten by both parties. Any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be brought in the Superior Court of Yuba County.

SECTION 21 INTEGRATION

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of the Authority and Consultant as to those matters contained herein and supersedes all prior negotiations. representations, or agreements. both written and oral.






8

Executed by the Authority and Consultant on the date shown next to their respective signatures.



DATE _Lg)L/  /.;i{

RJ C(l'\SULTING GROUP. INC.

BY:L..,kl\...Lt,l�	
Carrie Baxter




DATE:	"9•\\·'LA

REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT
AUTHORITY
BY: 'h:-J�P�
/	Kahn Bains. Board Chairman







































9

r)	::2.-._ CONSULTING GROUP, INC.
l<,.	.-1 RESOURCES· RESPECT· RESPONSIBILITY

April 29, 2024

Mr. Scott Scholz. Executive Director
Yuba Sutter Regional Waste Management Authority 2100 B Street. Marysville. CA 95901
submitted via email: scott@yubasutterrecycles.com

SUBJECT:	Executive Director Staff Augmentation - R3 Proposal - Updated May 21, 2024

Dear Mr. Scholz,

R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) is pleased to submit the attached proposal to Yuba Sutter Regional Waste Management Authority (RWMA) for solid waste consulting services.

RWMA'� solid waste staffing needs cover a range of tasks including negotiating regulatory compliant solid waste franchise agreement extensions. review of solid waste rate adjustments, presentations to the Board and member agency councils. meeting with Board members as appropriate, stakeholder engagement at board and technical advisory committee (TAC) meetings, representation and reporting to CalRecycle, and administering grants. As such, R3 will provide expert knowledge and technical assistance to aid in administration, program development and success in all areas of RWMA's solid waste management program.

Our team is uniquely qualified to provide the requested services for RWMA, in that we have been at the forefront of recent regulatory recycling and organics collection service requirements and have assisted numerous jurisdictions throughout the stale with implementing their programs. We also have the abttity to leverage our work efforts with neighboring communities. R3 has been guiding the nearby jurisdictions of Citrus Heights, Elk Grove, Folsom, Grass Valley, Loomis. Placer County, Nevada County, Rancho Cordova. and Rocklin with SB 1383 compliance planning and implementation. We are also working throughout the State to procure new solid waste collection services through negotiations or a competitive process. Most recently for the City of Rancho Cordova. R3 led the team in procuring new residential solid waste collection services with a focus on compliant organic collection programs through a competitive process - yielding unanimous City Council approval.

Project Team
Carrie Baxter, Principal, will serve as Project Lead and primary point of contact for this engagement. Carrie will be supported by Scott Hanin, Principal, Rose Radford. Director and Alex Soulard. Managing Consultant. Additionally, our team has the ability to draw upon junior day-to-day staff on an as-needed basis. As Board Secretary of R3, Carrie has the authority to contractually obligate R3 and negotiate contacts on behalf of the organization.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit our proposal to RWMA. Should you have any questions regarding our proposal or need any additional information, please don't hesitate to reach out directly.

Sincerely,
[image: RWMA Information.]
Carrie Baxter I Principal
R3 Consulting Group, Inc.
916.878.7413 I cbaxter@r3cgi.com

1512 E.,,,i,,/l Road. Su,1... 22C Rus,Mllll C,\ 95tl61 I p 911; 782 7821 I f 9113 782 7824 I NWW ·:'Ju,11 Cf'"'
EXHIBIT_A_

1.	SCOPE OF WORK

Project Understanding
RWMA's solid waste staffing needs cover a range of tasks that support contract administration and compliance for member agencies exclusive solid waste franchise agreements. As such, R3 will provide expert knowledge and technical assistance to aid in program development and success in all areas of RWMA's solid waste management program.

R3's goal for this engagement is to provide a tum-key solution to RWMA's solid waste management program, in collaboration with the Board and RWMA staff. We will verify that the member agencies' franchised hauler (Recology) operates safely and effectively, that they comply with their contractual obligations, and that the member agencies comply with all relevant laws and regulations. As RWMA's consultant, R3 wi.11 detennine if the franchised hauler is contractually compliant through monthly and quarterly contract assessments and recommend any necessary corrective actions. R3 will also assist in maintaining the RWMA and its member agencies' compliance with the state by preparing required reports, communicating with CalRecycle, training RWMA staff on processes and procedures, and performing all obligations as set by the governing entities.
Scope of Work
Task 1	Executive Director Administrative Duties
R3 will begin this project by meeting with each Board Member as well as key stakeholders (Recology and CalRecycle). We will have a dedicated staff person in Yuba or Sutter County working directly with RWMA staff and Board Members, on a weekly basis. Generally, in-person office hours will be held on Wednesday's between 10:00am - 3:00pm with the exception RWMA Board meetings, which are scheduled on Thursday afternoons. Our proposal estimates on average 5 hours of in-person staff time per week. These estimated weekly hours are presented with the understanding that some weeks will require less time and others will require more.

R3's dedicated staff person will also fill the administrative duties of the executive director as requested by the Board. Duties may indude, but is not limited to approving time off, managing reviews, coordinating with payroll and annual budget preparation.
T11sk 1 Deliverables
Initial one-on-one meetings with each Board Member as well as key stakeholders (Recology and CalRecycle).
Weekly meetings with RWMA staff.
Management of the RWMA staff (approving time off, coordination with payroll, etc.).

Task2	On-going Coordination with Key Stakeholders
R3 will work with RWMA staff to prepare Board meeting agenda packets and participate in Yuba Sutter Recycles Board meetings with its member agencies and TAC meetings with City Managers and County Administrators, each held monthly (typically 8-9 meetings per year). We have budgeted for Board meetings to be in person; however, TAC meetings have been budgeted to be virtual. R3 will also attend state and regional meetings, on behalf of RWMA. to monitor solid waste issues.
R3 will track legislation and anticipated State of California regulations that will impact the RWMA's recycling and waste reduction program. R3 will assume responsibility for all ongoing communication with the RWMA's CalRecycle local assistance and market development (LAMO} representatives. We will report out to TAC and the Board on all pertinent issues and will bring follow-up actions from the regional and slate agency coordination meetings.

R3 will also be available to present to member agency councils or boards on solid waste related matters, including, but not limited to, current and upcoming regulations, or franchise agreement amendments.


[image: RWMA Information.]Yuba SUtter RWMA lExecutiveDirector Stall Augmentation



Task 2 Deliverables
Up to twenty-five (25) meetings annuaHy, comprised of:
· Nine (9) RWMA Board meetings.
· Nine (9) TAC meetings.	'
· Seven (7) other meetings with Board Members and other stakeholders such as CalRecycle and/or presentations to member agency councils or boards.

Task 3	 Solid Waste Program Management Task 3.1	Waste Hauler Agreement Administration
R3 will act as RWMA staff and assume responsibility for the tracking and on-time submittal of all reports and required deliverables, per the member agencies· solid waste collection agreements. Our team will assist in monitoring Recology's residential and commercial programs and contractual obligations, and will work with RWMA staff to provide residential and commercial customers with guidance on disposal, recycling, and proper solid waste management. We will schedule monthly meetings with Recology and prepare agenda items to review contract compliance components, tonnage and diversion reports, and any current and upcoming solid waste activities.

The RWMA would greatly benefit from a Contract Compliance Monitoring Schedule for managing its solid waste collection contract with Recology. The Contract Compliance Monitoring Schedule will include a calendar of reporting requirements and details, outreach and education to customers, and assessment of liquidated damages terms.
Task 3.2	Report Preparation
R3 will assist RWMA staff in compiling and maintaining records pertaining the Electronic Annual Report (EAR). We will assist in completing and filing all reports required by CalRecycle to support the RWMA's member agencies· compliance with the state's 50% AB 939 diversion goals. R3 will prepare the EAR to describe the activities undertaken through the programs adopted iri the RWMA's Source Reduction and Recycling Element and Household Hazardous Waste Element. We will also prepare any additional required reports to meet SB 1383 requirements. beginning with the EAR due on August 1, 2024, and annually thereafter during the term of our service agreement.

R3 will also prepare a response to requested data with other agencies, such as Yuba or Sutter County, pertaining to the RWMA member agencies' solid waste programs as requested.
Task 3.3	General Program, Board and Staff Support
Ongoing coordination will be conducted regularly throughout the project with the RWMA staff, either through virtual meetings or status reports. We have budgeted for most meetings, including check-in meetings with RWMA staff, Board Members and Recology to be virtual.

R3 will provide as-needed solid waste consulting services, as requested. While the nature of on-call services makes it difficult to determine which services R3 may be asked to perform. we have prepared a list that we envision we may be asked to provide (see list below).
Our team is also available to provide additional solid waste related services not included on our list as directed by RWMA. The specific task to be performed and the amount of time to be allocated to each task will be dependent upon the RWMA's requests and the agreed upon budgetary limitations.

On-call support services may include:
Providing technical assistance and guidance to RWMA staff on issues related to solid waste. recycling, and organics.
Providing guid�nce on compliance with State regulations, including, but not limited to SB 1383. SB 1016, AB 939, AB 341. AB 1826, AB 1594, AB 1669. AB 901, and AB 876.

Yuba Suiter RWMA IExecutive Director Staff Augmentallon	2	R.3



» Monitoring and advising RWMA staff on State regulations including any policy issues or areas of concern.
Site visits to provide additional education to non-compliant businesses.
i  Rate reviews.
t Franchise agreement extensions to incorporate new regulatory requirements (e.g., new Zero Emission California Air Resource Board (CARB) requirements)
» Review of options for maintaining recordkeeping and reporting to meet regulatory requirements.
Task 3 Deliverables
Contract Compliance Monitoring Schedule.
Workbook tracking compliance with the requirements set forth in the member agencies' franchise agreements with Recology through the Contract Compliance Monitoring Schedule.
Gather and maintain records in preparation of completing the annual reporting for CalRecycle. On-call support services, as requested.
Task4	Prepare, Monitor, and Manage Grants
R3 will assist RWMA staff manage and administer current grant programs and submitting reports to the applicable grant agencies. R3.will stay up to date on all current arid upcoming grant cycles, maintain knowledge of all new and existing grants, and provide necessary recommendations.

Task 4 Deliverables
Grant management tracking workbook.
Regular RWMA staff check-ins to draft and apply for grants, administer grants that have been awarded, and report on completed grant programs.





























Yuba Sutter RWMA IEl,.ecutive Director Staff Augmenlation	3	R..3

· P	O	ECT	[image: RWMA Information.]GE

R3 proposes to complete the project for a total cost of	for a 6-month term. For cost effective service delivery, R3's proposal is fixed at $18,500 per month. This budget includes R3 staff time of approximately 16 hours per week, including dedicated in-person staff time of on average 5 hours in Yuba or Sutter County working directly with Board Members. TAC, and RWMA staff on a weekly basis. These estimated weekly hours are presented with the understanding that some weeks will require less time and others will require more. The budget is inclusive of reimbursable costs for travel at the 2024 IRS mileage rate of $0.67 per mile.

R3 further agrees to extend the duration of this fixed fee proposal for up to an additional 12 months upon request from the Board.

Additional consulting services beyond those proposed will be charged at the hourly billing rates shown in Table 1, below. Our fixed fee for work completed will be billed monthly at the first of each month. for the preceding month, and are doe within 30 days of the invoice date.
Standard Hourly Rates

	l. ��'�f �iiGiJ!O�-!-�1   _  _    _	,·•     r_    _        ,	L-.�•:---  7

	Principal
	$ 300 per hour

	Sr. Direc:tor
	$ 300 per hour

	Director
	$ 255 per hour

	Sr. Managing Consultant
	$ 235 per hour

	Managing Consultant
	$ 210 per hour

	Sr. Consultant
	$ 200 per hour

	Consultant
	$ 180 per hour

	Associate Consultant
	$ 165 per hour

	Expert Witness
I,-,r	-
	1.5x Rates Listed Above

	-	-.��$,M�µ�������-��
1�11 -  I	- '	---	--��=����	�•JI

	Consultants/Subcontrac:tors
	Cost plus 10%

	Lodging and meals
	Direct cost

	Travel • Private or ccmpany car
	At Current Federal Rate

	Travel • Other
	Direct cost

	Delivery and other expenses
	Direct cost

















Yuba Sutter RWMA I Execubve Olfecior Staff Augmentation	4 Q3

[bookmark: 6_IV_-_B_Staff_Report]Agenda Item IV. –B Staff Report

BANK AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNT SIGNATURE AUTHORITY TITLE CHANGES
Staff is requesting a change in signature authority for the Regional Waste Management Authority’s (RWMA) River Valley Community Bank accounts and the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The second signature authority is currently the Administrator and Finance Program Manager, or their successors in office, which was an authorized position under the consulting agreement between the RWMA and Yuba-Sutter Transit. This agreement has expired. The attached resolution replaces the second signature authority contracted Administrator and Finance Program Manager position with an RWMA Board Member selected by the Board of Directors for this purpose.

Staff will be prepared to discuss this issue in more detail at the meeting.
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 6-25 changing the authorized signers on the Regional Waste Management Authority’s bank and investment accounts as proposed or revised.
Attachment

[bookmark: 7_IV_-_B_RWMA_Resolution_bank_LAIF_6-25]REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY RESOLUTION NO. 6-25
BANK AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNT SIGNATURE AUTHORITY TITLE CHANGES
WHEREAS, the Regional Waste Management Authority’s Accounting Policies and Procedures Manual places primary on-site signatory responsibilities for all bank accounts on the Executive Director of Regional Waste Management Authority.

WHEREAS, the Regional Waste Management Authority Board of Directors hereby finds that the proper signature authority for the deposit and withdrawal of money in the Regional Waste Management Authority’s bank accounts is in the best interests of the Authority.

WHEREAS, The Local Agency Investment Fund is established in the State Treasury under Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the safe and conservative deposit of money of a local agency for purposes of investment by the State Treasurer; and

WHEREAS, the Regional Waste Management Authority Board of Directors hereby finds that the deposit and withdrawal of money in the Local Agency Investment Fund in accordance with Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the purpose of investment as provided therein is in the best interests of the Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby authorizes the deposit and withdrawal of Authority monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund in the State Treasury in accordance with Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the purpose of investment therein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby designates a member of the Board of Directors to serve as the second authorized signatory on all Regional Waste Management Authority bank and investment accounts.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as follows:
Section 1. The following Regional Waste Management Authority officers holding the title(s) specified below or their successors in office are each hereby authorized to order the deposit or withdrawal of monies in the Regional Waste Management Authority bank and investment accounts, including the Local Agency Investment Fund, and may execute and deliver any and all documents necessary or advisable in order to effectuate the purposes of this resolution and the transactions contemplated hereby:


1. Carrie Baxter
Interim Executive Director/ Executive Director
2. 
 	
RWMA Board Member

Section 2. This resolution shall remain in full force and effect until rescinded by the Board of Directors by resolution.

The foregoing resolution was passed by the Regional Waste Management Authority this 30 day of October 2025.




Chairperson
Regional Waste Management Authority
ATTEST:

Date 	




Date 	
Clerk to the Board
image2.png
i) -
L_G. e s 4




image3.png




image4.jpeg




image1.jpeg
REGIONAL WASTE ENT AUTHORITY

Serving Sutter County, Yuba Cou rysville, Wheatland and Yuba City




